

Illinois Association for Career and Technical Education Constitution

Article I Name

Section 1 The name of this association shall be the ILLINOIS ASSOCIATION FOR CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION hereinafter known as the IACTE and incorporated as a GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION in the State of Illinois. IACTE has an exemption status of 501-c-3 from the Internal Revenue Code of 1954.

Article II Mission and Purposes

Section 1 The Illinois Association of Career and Technical Education provides unified, visionary leadership to advance career and technical education.

Section 2 The purposes of the Association shall be:

- A.** To promote the development, upgrading and dissemination of quality career and technical education programs at the elementary, secondary, post secondary and adult levels of education.
- B.** To provide for professional development and growth activities involving current trends, issues and emerging technologies for all career and technical educators so as to promote quality instruction.
- C.** To foster leadership development that will encourage and recognize bold thinking, creativity and innovation among its members to assure the continuation of a strong Association.
- D.** To promote and develop cooperative partnerships between the educational community and business/industry/labor.
- E.** To promote the unification of all career and technical education.
- F.** To promote the unification of all career and technical education interests in Illinois into the Association through affiliates and liaisons.
- G.** To support legislation at the State and Federal levels which will promote the mission and purposes of the Association.
- H.** To encourage active membership involvement in the accomplishment of the mission and purposes of the Association.
- I.** To promote membership growth in all areas served by the Association.
- J.** To support and promote the activities of career and technical education student organizations.

- K. To provide the fiscal means to accomplish the mission and purposes of the Association.
- L. To continue affiliation with the Association for the Career and Technical Education and actively support its activities and programs.

Article III **Affiliate**

Section 1 The Association shall be composed of members of the following affiliates who have paid IACTE dues.

- A. Illinois Association of Vocational Agriculture Teachers (IAVAT)
- B. Illinois Family and Consumer Sciences Teachers' Association (IFACSTA)
- C. Illinois Business Education Association (IBEA)
- D. Technology Education Association of Illinois (TEA of IL)
- E. Illinois New and Related Services (INRS)
- F. Illinois Health Occupations Association (IHOA)
- G. Illinois Career and Technical Administrators (ICTA)
- H. Illinois Career Coordinators Association (ICCA)
- I. Illinois Association of Vocational Education Special Needs Personnel (ILAVESNP)

Section 2 Prospective affiliates shall apply to the Illinois Association for Career and Technical Education for affiliation. The following materials shall accompany the application:

- A. A copy of the proposed constitution and bylaws, which shall be in harmony with the IACTE Constitution.
- B. The name and addresses of each affiliate officer.
- C. A copy of a financial statement to show they are solvent.
- D. Written rationale as to why they should be considered for affiliation.
- E. Additional items as defined by IACTE Policies.

Section 3 Upon receipt of the prospective affiliate's application, the IACTE Board of Directors shall evaluate the request. If the evaluation is favorable, the request for affiliation will be sent to the next House of Delegates for consideration.

Section 4 All affiliates shall encourage programs, activities and services to meet the needs of their special interest within their respective associations, and shall promote the IACTE and ACTE programs of work.

Article IV Officers

Section 1 The officers of this Association shall be: President, Past-President, President-Elect, Secretary and Treasurer.

Article V Bylaws

Section 1 Bylaws with and in support of this constitution shall be adopted by the Association.

Article VI Distribution of Assets upon Dissolution

Section 1 Upon the dissolution of this Association, the Board of Directors shall, after paying or making provisions for payment of all liabilities of the Association, dispose of all of the residual assets of the association exclusively for the purposes of the Association (including the Joy Janssen fund and any other special funds) in such manner, or to such organization or organizations organized and operated exclusively for charitable, religious, or scientific purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt organization or organizations under Section 501 (C) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding provisions of any future United States Internal Revenue Law), as the Board of Directors shall determine. Any of such assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the Circuit Court of the county in which the principal office of the Association is then located, exclusively of such purposes or to such organization or organizations as said court shall determine, which are organized and operated for such purposes.

Illinois Association for Career and Technical Education ByLaws

Article I Official Emblem

Section 1 The IACTE shall have an official emblem.

Section 2 The design and colors of the emblem shall be approved by a majority vote of the IACTE Board of Directors.

Article II Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of this Association shall be July 1 through June 30.

Article III Membership

Section 1 Membership categories in the IACTE shall be Active, Life, Student, Associate, Honorary and Loyalty.

Section 2 Active membership shall be limited to members of the affiliates named in Article III, Section 1, of the IACTE Constitution who have paid their IACTE dues for the current year or are life members of the IACTE.

Section 3 Student membership shall be limited to undergraduate student members of the affiliate named in Article III, Section 1, of the IACTE Constitution who have paid student IACTE dues for the current year.

Section 4 Associate membership shall consist of individuals, institutions and companies who are interested in IACTE activities. Each membership must be approved by the current IACTE President.

Section 5 Only Active, Loyalty and Life members are eligible to vote.

Section 6 Individual membership shall coincide with the cyclical renewal membership date of that member.

Section 7 Honorary membership may be awarded by the Board of Directors.

Section 8 Loyalty membership shall consist of retired and technical educators interested in IACTE activities.

Section 9 The association is open to all persons interested in career and technical education regardless of race, gender, color, national origin, religion, age, sexual orientation, or disability.

Article IV Governing Rules

Section 1 There shall be a Board of Directors:

A. The Board of Directors shall be composed of the following:

1. Voting Board Members

a. Five IACTE Officers: President, Immediate Past-President, President-Elect, Secretary, and Treasurer.

- b. Each affiliate in good standing is allowed one voting representative on the IACTE Board of Directors.
 - Affiliates shall designate, in a manner consistent with their respective Constitution, ByLaws or organizational policies, a representative to the IACTE Board of Directors.
 - c. One postsecondary student member of IACTE
 - The postsecondary student representative to be elected in an at-large election by the active members of IACTE.
 - The student representative will serve a two (2) year term.
 - d. One member of IACTE representing post-secondary education.
 - The representative is to be elected in an at-large election by the active members of IACTE.
 - The representative shall serve a two (2) year term.
2. Board Liaisons
- a. Each affiliate in good standing is allowed one liaison representative to the IACTE Board of Directors.
 - Affiliates shall designate, in a manner consistent with their respective Constitution, ByLaws or organizational policies, a representative to serve as a liaison to the IACTE Board of Directors.
 - b. Eleven Task Force Chairpersons as designated in Article IX, Section 1, of the Bylaws shall serve as liaisons to the IACTE Board of Directors.
 - c. Liaisons shall be approved by the voting members of the IACTE Board of Directors
 - d. Others individuals, as appointed by the President, and approved by the IACTE Board of Directors, may serve as liaison members to the IACTE Board of Directors.
- B. The voting procedure of the Board of Directors shall be as follows:
- 1. All Board members, who are Active, Loyalty or Life IACTE members, shall each have one vote.
 - 2. The President may vote only to break a tie, or in cases where the vote would affect the motion.
 - 3. A quorum must be present before any business is transacted. A quorum requires the presence of a majority of the affiliate voting representatives and a majority of the IACTE Officers.
- A. The Board of Directors shall constitute the administrative body of the IACTE within the limitations of the constitution and the Bylaws.
- B. The Board of Directors shall provide for the safekeeping of all funds of the organization and assure their proper use.
- C. The Board of Directors shall have the power to interpret the constitution and its bylaws and shall generally shape and direct all policies and activities of the IACTE.
- D. The Board of Directors shall cause the President to appoint a task force with equal representation of the affiliates to develop and maintain the IACTE Policies and Procedures Handbook. Said handbook shall include a copy of the

constitution and Bylaws and set forth a list of duties, responsibilities, and activities of Officers, Board of Directors, House of Delegates, IACTE Task Forces, Executive Director and Membership.

Section 2 There shall be an Executive Committee

- A. The Executive Committee shall composed of:
 - 1. The IACTE President, immediate Past-President, President-Elect, Secretary, Treasurer and Executive Director.
- B. The Executive Committee shall be empowered to act in the place of the Board if Directors in emergency situations.
- C. A quorum must be present before any business is transacted. A quorum consists of a majority of the Executive Committee Membership.

Section 3 There shall be a House of Delegates

- A. The House of Delegates shall be based upon IACTE membership in the affiliate and shall vote on the following items at the annual IACTE Business Meeting held during the annual IACTE Convention.
 - 1. Constitution and Bylaws,
 - 2. Dues,
 - 3. Elected officers of the organization,
 - 4. Program of Work,
 - 5. Resolutions,
 - 6. Other pertinent matters which may be brought forth.
- B. The Voting procedure in meetings of the House of Delegates shall be as follows:
 - 1. Each delegate to the House of Delegates shall have one vote.
 - 2. Delegates to the House of Delegates shall be determined as follows:
 - The President of each Affiliate.
 - One additional delegate for the first two members, based on the affiliate membership in IACTE at the end of the fiscal quarter immediately preceding the IACTE annual conference, and
 - One additional delegate representing thirty-five (35) members or major fraction thereof each affiliate division based upon IACTE membership at the end of the fiscal quarter immediately preceding the IACTE annual conference.
 - 3. All delegates to the House of Delegates must be current Active, Loyalty or Life IACTE members.

4. A quorum must be present before any business is transacted. A quorum requires the presence of a majority of the total potential delegates to the House of Delegates.

Article V **Election/Appointment of Officers**

Section 1 Officers of this Association shall be elected/appointed on an annual basis in the following manner:

A. The President

1. The current President-Elect shall advance to the office of President without vote of the House of Delegates.
2. An interim President-Elect shall be subject to election as defined in Article IV, Section 3, Paragraph B.

B. The President-Elect:

1. Shall be elected by a majority vote of the delegates present at the annual House of Delegates meeting.
2. An affiliate will be allowed to submit a candidate for the office of President-Elect to the Nominating Task Force as long as the affiliate does not have a member representing their affiliate currently serving as immediate Past-President, President or President-Elect.
3. Shall be elected from among those IACTE members who have been an active member of the affiliate from which they are nominated for at least three years and must have served the affiliate in a leadership capacity.
4. Shall be elected from a slate of one or more candidates submitted by the nominating committee, or
5. Candidates may be nominated from the floor for consideration by the House of Delegates but must meet the qualifications as stated in Article VI, Section 1, Paragraph B, Part 2 & 3 of the Bylaws.

C. The Secretary

1. Shall be elected by a majority vote of the delegates present at the annual House of Delegates meeting.
2. Shall be elected from a slate of one or more candidates submitted by the nominating committee, or
3. Shall not serve more than three full consecutive years in this officer position.

D. The Treasurer

1. Shall be appointed by the IACTE Board of Directors on an annual basis.
2. Shall have the same rights and privileges as elected officers of the Association.

E. The Past President

1. The current President shall advance to the office of Past President without vote of the House of Delegates.

Section 2 The President, President-Elect and Secretary will assume office following election by the House of Delegates. The immediate Past-President shall serve a term the same as the above-mentioned officers. The Treasurer assumes office immediately after appointment by the Board of Directors.

Section 3 Officer vacancies of this Association shall be elected/appointed in the following manner:

A. The President and Secretary

1. The affiliates shall be notified and have the opportunity to nominate a successor for the vacant office. The Board of Directors shall vote on and confirm such replacement.

B. The President-Elect

1. The Board of Directors shall appoint an interim President-Elect. This interim President-Elect shall not automatically advance to office of President. The next House of Delegates shall elect a President utilizing the same nomination and election procedures as are used for the office of President-Elect. Nominations may be from any affiliate which would have been eligible to nominate in the year that the individual who vacated the post was elected.

Article VI Removal From Office

Section 1 Any IACTE Officer may be removed from office at any regular or specially called meeting by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board of Directors for the following reasons:

- A. Inability to perform duties due to health reasons,
- B. Excessive absence,
- C. Other reasons as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.

Article VII Remuneration

Section 1 All elected Officers and Board of Directors shall serve without remuneration unless authorized by the Board of Directors. The reimbursement shall be for

mileage and incurred expenses, as set forth in the IACTE Policies and Procedures Handbook.

Section 2 Expenses incurred at the annual IACTE Professional Development Institute may only be reimbursed when authorized by the Board of Directors. When so authorized, reimbursement shall follow all procedures set forth in the IACTE Policies and Procedures Handbook. Reimbursement may be authorized for the following IACTE Board Members.

- A. The Five (5) elected/appointed officers of the IACTE.
- B. Other IACTE Convention Task Force Chairmen as appointed by the Board of Directors prior to the annual meeting.

Article VIII **Task Forces and Appointments**

Section 1 The President, utilizing recommendations from the affiliate Presidents, shall recommend to the IACTE Board of Directors, for approval, the appointment of chairs and members for the following with equal representation from affiliates.

- A. Awards Task Force (Past-President shall be Chair)
- B. Constitution/Bylaws Task Force (Chair shall serve as Parliamentarian)
- C. IACTE Policy and Procedures Handbook Task Force (Secretary shall serve as Chair)
- D. Nominations Task Force
- E. Program of Work Task Force (President-Elect shall serve as Chair)
- F. Public Information Task Force
- G. Public Relations Task Force
- H. Resolutions Task Force (may be combined with the Constitution/Bylaws Task Force at the discretion of the Board)
- I. Membership Promotion Task Force
- J. Convention Exhibits Task Force
- K. IACTE Convention Planning Task Force (President-Elect shall serve as Chair)

Section 2 The President, with approval of the IACTE Board of Directors, shall appoint the following:

- A. Liaisons approved by the voting members of the IACTE Board of Directors
- B. Others appointed by the President with approval of the IACTE Board of Directors.

Section 3 The President, with approval of the IACTE Board of Directors, shall appoint such other task forces as representatives as deemed necessary giving equal representation to each affiliate in so far as possible.

Article IX Meetings

Section 1 There shall be an annual meeting of the membership, which shall include a House of Delegates, on a date selected by the Board of Directors.

Section 2 Board of Directors Meetings

A. There shall be a minimum of three (3) meetings of the Board of Directors annually.

B. Other meetings may be called by the President or at the joint request of the majority of the voting members of the Board of Directors.

Section 3 The President of the IACTE shall preside at all meetings.

Section 4 The Secretary shall keep and preserve an accurate record of all proceedings of the above meetings and distribute minutes promptly to all members of the Board of Directors.

Article X Delegates to the ACTE

Section 1 The IACTE President shall represent the first 100 members of the IACTE as a delegate to the ACTE Convention.

Section 2 Other delegates as allowed by the ACTE Constitution and Bylaws shall be appointed by the IACTE President. The appointments shall be in proportion to each affiliate's membership in ACTE based on the preceding ACTE fiscal year.

Section 3 Only official delegates to the ACTE who are IACTE officers will be reimbursed from the IACTE funds to the extent determined by the Board of Directors.

Article XI Dues

Section 1 Active membership dues shall be set by the House of Delegates to become effective at the beginning of the next fiscal year. When no action is taken to change dues at the House of Delegates meeting, the dues for the next fiscal year shall remain at the current year's dues rates.

Section 2 Dues of other membership categories shall be as follows:

A. Student dues shall be \$5.00.

B. Associate dues shall be four (4) times the current active dues rate except for individuals whose dues rate shall be equal to the current Active membership dues.

C. Life membership dues shall be twenty (20) times the current active dues rate.

- D. Loyalty membership dues shall be one-half (1/2) the current active dues rate, rounded up to the nearest dollar.

Article XII Rules of Order

- Section 1** The current edition of Robert's Rules of Order shall govern any provision not set forth in this set of bylaws or the constitution.

Article XIII Amendments and/or Revision

- Section 1** The bylaws may be amended or revised at the annual business meeting of the association by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the House of Delegates present and voting provided that the amendment has been submitted to the membership in writing at least thirty (30) days prior to the annual meeting.
- Section 2** The constitution may be amended or revised at the annual business meeting of the association by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the House of Delegates present and voting provided that the amendment has been submitted to the membership in writing at least thirty (30) days prior to the annual meeting.
- Section 3** Proposed amendments or revisions in the constitution and bylaws may be submitted by IACTE members to the IACTE officers or affiliate presidents for consideration by the IACTE Board of Directors at least 120 days prior to the annual meeting. A simple majority vote by the Board of Directors shall warrant the proposed amendment or revision being submitted to the membership and voted upon at the annual House of Delegates meeting.
- Section 4** Constitution and/or bylaw amendments or revisions approved by the House of Delegates shall become effective upon approval.